HALIFAX BOARD OF SELECTMEN

SELECTMEN MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2019 - 6:30 P.M.

SELECTMEN MEETING ROOM

--------------------------------------------------------------

Meeting came to order at 6:30 p.m. with Selectmen Kim R. Roy, Troy E. Garron and Thomas Millias present.
The following business was discussed:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Board as well as those attending tonight’s meeting stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance.

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

Representative LaNatra
Roy said that the Board wanted Ms. LaNatra to come in so they could say hello and see if there was anything she wanted to talk to the BOS about.  
LaNatra said that she met with Senator Brady today about the Monponsett issue and one of her priorities to put in some money for the Halifax CoA.  She does not recall what the Chief of Police asked Senator Brady to look into.  Seelig said that he will check with the Chief to see what it was.  
LaNatra further said that she does not have an office but has office hours in the district and once a month she is here in Halifax at the library the last Sunday of the month from 12 to 2 p.m.  She stated that vey single time she has been here there have been constituents, so it has been great.   she asked the BOS if they had any questions for her or anything that they would like for priorities or things that they need help with in the town that she can assist with.  
Roy pointed out the underfunding of Chapter 70 and Special Ed and diversion of Charter Schools.  Seelig added that Charter Schools really need to create their own districts and their own revenue stream rather than siphoning the money by Chapter 70 and said that Silver Lake lost more money than they got from Chapter 70, the gross they actually are net down for state aid this coming year.  He pointed out that the City of Boston loses more money through Charter Schools.  Garron said the sad thing is that the Charter Schools can pick and choose who they want to come to their schools but the public schools have to deal with all the problems.  Seelig said that parents have to opt out rather than opt in to get the advertising – it should be the other way around, actually have a choice where they are going to have advertising using their own money.  
Seelig went on to another topic which is the solar fields.  He said they should try and get between the court decisions and the state laws on solar fields and pilots and get that straightened out so there is some consistent mechanism that governs the whole process so we don’t have to have these individual fights either in court or the pilots with the solar.  Millias said it is more to do with how they are treated in terms of paying private property and personal property as it is a gray area and the court decisions have been all over the place – need some consistency.  
Another issue Seelig brought up is some technical difficulties with enforcing school buses and the flashing red lights and stop signs in that in trying to work with the school bus company, the school district and our police department to prevent people from passing the buses and endangering the school children.  He said that they thought about, is can we put cameras on the buses, or on the stop signs, so that when the stop sign comes out, the camera is on and it can record but one of the problems is in Massachusetts it might be illegal to use cameras for traffic enforcement, meaning  you have to have a human being doing the work.  Seelig said in Rhode Island they had to pass legislation to set up a camera in Providence where people were speeding or going through stop signs.  
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He said we could have police cars follow the buses but there are ten buses going around Halifax and we only have two police cars.  Millias said that there has been a little change in the paradigm of the school buses as there was a time there were collecting points, now they are stopping at every driveway so he can see drivers getting frustrated.  
LaNatra said that she will look into the solar fields and the bus issue.
The Board thanked her for coming in and LaNatra said she can come in anytime and the if the Board can think of anything please give her call.  If she has anything that she thinks is important she will make it a point to call.
AGENDA

No addition to the agenda for Tuesday, April 9, 2019.

MINUTES

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously approved the following Selectmen Minutes:
Regular Session – October 17, 2018
Regular Session – October 18, 2018

Regular Session – January 22, 2019

Regular Session – February 12, 2019

AFFIRMED WARRANTS AND COMMITMENTS

Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously affirmed approval for the payment of the following warrants and commitments:
	Payroll Warrant
	# 87
	$ 367,907.67

	Vendor Warrant
	# 88
	$ 133,690.39

	Withholding Warrant
	# 89
	$ 133,955.98

	School Warrant
	# 90
	$ 397,203.04

	Ambulance Commitment

from 3/18/19 – 3/24/19
	
	$   56,275.29

	Ambulance Commitment

from 3/25/19 – 3/31/19
	
	$   54,776.06


APPROVED WARRANT AND COMMITMENT

Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously approved payment of the following warrant and commitment:

	Vendor Warrant
	# 91
	$ 54,756.77 

	Mobile Home Park Fee
	#   4
	$   5,160.00


APPROVED SELECTMEN BILLS 

Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously approved payment of the following Selectmen bills:
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	BID Plymouth (physicals/Varruso, Murdock & O’Sullivan)…..

CNA Surety Direct Bill (bond/B. Gaynor).…………………….

Express Newspapers (ad/Highway driver/laborer)……………..

Attorney Lawrence P. Mayo (legal/March) ……………………

Brooks & Derensis, P.C. (legal/March) …..................................
	$ 1,180.00

$    100.00

$      22.50

$ 6,089.70

$ 5,600.91


GENERAL MAIL / DISCUSSIONS
Elementary School – Doors, Windows & Siding Project
The plan is to complete work, during school vacation week.  If needed, Mr. Seelig will set up another meeting in late April.
Route 106 Study
OCPC has completed the draft of its Route 106 Study (from West Bridgewater to Kingston).  It is more than 60 pages long so Seelig did not printed it out but can provide the Board members with a link or, if necessary, print it out.  An electronic copy has been sent to the Traffic Safety Committee for comments (deadline for comments is April 19th.   Seelig plans on posting it on the Town’ web site.

Public Records Request from Boston Globe
Request was for Payroll Data.
Public Records Request from ”Open the Books” 
Request for Payroll Data. 
Town Meeting and Septic System 
Chris Caramanica of Peabody sent a letter about being able to vote at town meeting via mail-in and a request that the Town re-establish a committee to plan a wastewater system and treatment plant.  He followed up with an e-mail about federal funding.  He had e-mailed the Town of a couple of months ago about the latter and Seelig briefed him about the history of wastewater systems in Halifax.  Seelig plans on replying to his correspondence indicating that under the Massachusetts General Laws, voters can vote only where they reside and that there are no plans for a committee for wastewater treatment in Halifax and will tell him that he could try to get the signatures of ten registered voters in Halifax to place the issue of the warrant for a future annual town meeting.

Public Records Request from Gordon C. Andrews
Andrews is requesting more copies of plans of Amanda Estates.   There was some confusion on what he wanted but he was able to get copies of what he requested.

Double Telephone Pole at Town Hall
The double pole in front of Town Hall has finally been removed.

ZBA Open Meeting Law Complaint
Gordon C. Andrews complained that the ZBA held an executive session in March including a member of the ZBA who should have recused himself.  The ZBA received the complaint and Seelig hopes that it was resolved at last night’s meeting.  Seelig will check to see if it was dealt with.  
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HOPS Playground
The Historic District Commission is in approval of the project.  Roy said that they will be building the playground this coming Friday Saturday and Sunday.  There will be two shifts each day and if anyone is interested in helping, they can go online to sign up.  
Fire Suppression System BAN
The staff has been collecting the necessary documents and the BOS will be asked to sign the actual BAN on May 13th.
Fire Suppression System OPM
Seelig recommends that the Board select Vertex; other firms did send it proposals but the primary criteria was familiarity with the elementary school and Vertex has that.
Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously voted to award the OPM contract to Vertex for the fire suppression system. 
Silver Lake Budget
Seelig’s colleague, Liz Dennehy in Plympton, wrote to him about the Town’ s recommendation for the Silver Lake budget as Plympton is still considering its own.  He said that the Finance Committee had recommended the budget but opposed the separate article for the resource officer.  Our discussion indicated that whether the Selectmen or the Finance Committee does it, we should have a meeting with the other two communities this fall, before budget season begins, about the long-term prospects for the Silver Lake budget.

Wage and Personnel Resignation - Claudia Noble-Cotton
Ms. Noble-Cotton has resigned from the Wage and Personnel Board.
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to send her a letter thanking her for serving on the Board. 
Division of Fisheries and Wildlife/Aldana Road Parcel
Plymouth County has reached out to Fisheries and Wildlife about the parcel.  Seelig will stay in touch with both parties.   DFG won’t know if they have the money in the FY2019 (this year’s budget) until early May.  If not, they would set aside money in FY2020.

Request for Access to Fire Station Property
Partners Engineering is no longer requesting the ability to place a monitoring well on the Fire Station property.

Animal Control Officer Reappointment
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to reappoint Noreen Callahan as the Animal Control Officer, term to expire April 30, 2020.

John Peck Earth Removal
Mr. Peck called to say that he has been in the hospital for more than two weeks and has been unable to respond to the Board’s request.   He said he will do so once he leaves the hospital.

Special Police Officer Appointment
Police Chief Chaves is requesting that Michael Boncariewski be appointed as a special police officer.  He will be in at 8:30 p.m. on April 23rd for an interview.
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Talent Bank Form from Marguerite Pujalte
Ms. Pujalte is interested in serving on the Housing Authority and the
Affordable Housing Committee.  The latter is dormant, and the former may have a vacant seat but until the Department of Housing and Community Development straightens out how individuals are to be elected, given the changes in the State’s laws on the subject, that seat will have to remain vacant.  Her talent bank form has been forwarded to the Housing Authority.
Talent Bank Form from Carol Klukas
Ms. Klukas is interested in serving on the Conservation Commission.  A copy of the form has been sent to the Commission.

Pope’s Tavern Renovations
There will be a meeting on April 23rd to discuss possible work and what work should be a priority.   Seelig suspects that there are more tasks to accomplish that there are dollars.

Mailbox Kiosks
Seelig has not heard back from the Halifax Post Office in regards to the letter he sent them.  He recommends that the Board ask him to contact US Representative Keating so see if his office can get someone to meet with the Selectmen and/or Planning Board.

Security Camera Systems for Municipal Buildings
Seelig is attending a meeting on this and the key fob tomorrow afternoon.

Unregistered Vehicle Permit - Richard Harrison
The office is still waiting for a copy of the registration from Mr. Harrison in connection with his expired permit for the unregistered vehicle on his property at Map 73, Lot 7A on Plymouth Street.  Seelig may visit the property to see if the plates are up to date.

Recycling Bins and Barrels
Jason Vaughn of Lydon Lane wrote to complain about the small recycling bins that the Town used to give out.   He wants the Town to provided large barrels for recycling.  Seelig is waiting to hear back from Susan Johnston and Steve Hayward.

Acceptance of Chapter 258, Section 13
Seelig asked the Board if they wanted to place the following measure on the Town Election Ballot on May 16, 2020:

    Shall the town vote to accept the provisions of section thirteen of chapter two hundred and
    fifty-eight of the General Laws which provides the town shall indemnify and save harmless
    municipal officers, elected or appointed, from personal financial loss and expense including
    reasonable legal fees and costs, if any, in an amount not to exceed one million dollars, arising
    out of any claim, demand, suit or judgment by reason of any act or omission except an  
    intentional violation of civil rights of any person under any law, if the official at the time of
    such act or omission was acting within the scope of his official duties or employment?

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to accept Chapter 258, Section 13 and place it on the ballot for the May 16, 2020 election. 
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Health Emergency

The Board of Health Agent has reported a rat infestation at 407 south Street which needs to be eradicated.  Seelig recommends that the Board declare an emergency under MGL Chapter 44, Section 31 and approve having an exterminator visit the property to provide an estimate for services and do the necessary work.  The Finance Committee is not scheduled to meet until April 22nd so he cannot wait for a reserve fund transfer.  
Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously declare an emergency under MGL Chapter 44, Section 31 and approved having an exterminator visit the above-mentioned property to provide an estimate for services and do the necessary work.  
Silver Lake Union Negotiations

Seelig said that there is one person from the three towns who represents the three towns on negotiations.  Roy was this person but seeing as she is leaving Seelig asked Millias and Garron if they had any interest in being that person.  Christine Joy, member of the BOS in Plympton, passed on to Joy Blackwood that she would be happy to participate but wanted to see is someone from Halifax and Kingston would like to serve on the negotiations.  Roy thought it would be nice to have voice from Plympton.  
Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously supported having Christine Joy attend union negotiations for Silver Lake. 
Road Opening – 266 South Street
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously approved Permit #2019-07 issued to Columbia Gas of Massachusetts for a 4’ x 6’ road cut tie in & a 4’ x 40’ road cut trench to install new gas service at the above location.
Road Opening – 2 Carver Street

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously approved Permit #2019-08 issued to Columbia Gas of Massachusetts for a 4’ x 6’ road cut tie in & a 4’ x 145’ road cut trench to install new gas service at the above location. 
Road Opening – 49 Madison Road
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously approved Permit 2019-09 issued to Columbia Gas of Massachusetts for a 4’ x 6’ road cut tie in & a 4’ x 10’ road cut trench to install new gas service at the above location.  
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board voted as follows to enter into Executive Session at 7:07 p.m. to discuss contract negotiations for Sergeants, Patrol Officers, Highway, Firefighters, Police Chief, Town Administrator; Andrews v. Halifax; Patrol Officer grievance on seniority dates and Waterman Grievances (suspension, termination, improper release of documents, wage rate):
	Kim R. Roy
	-
	Yes

	Troy E. Garron
	-
	Yes

	Thomas Millias
	-
	Yes


Roy announced that at the end of the Executive Session and the Board would reconvene in public session.

--------------
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Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board voted as follows to come out of Executive Session at 7:26 p.m.: 

	Kim R. Roy
	-
	Yes

	Troy E. Garron
	-
	Yes

	Thomas Millias
	-
	Yes


SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS 

Continuation of Revocation Hearings 

    Evergreen Beverage Company d/b/a Twin Lakes Liquors & Convenience
    Davis Automotive
Evergreen/Twin Lakes Liquor continues to follow the payment schedule.  Seelig recommends continuing this hearing for two months (June 11th) at 7:45 p.m.  
Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to continue the revocation hearing for Evergreen Beverage Company d/b/a Twin Lakes Liquors & Convenience to June 11th at 7:45 p.m. 
Davis Automotive has not paid for two months therefore Seelig recommends revocation of Flammable Storage permit and Class II license and continue this hearing to April 23rd at 7:25 p.m.

Moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to revoke the Flammable Storage permit and Class II license for Davis Automotive and to continue the hearing to April 23rd at 8:35 p.m. 
GENERAL MAIL / DISCUSSIONS

Revenue for Recyclables 
Roy stated that revenues for recyclables are declining due to residents going with private haulers and that there needs to to discussion about looking at another revenue for the recyclables.  She suggested a solid waste committee but realizes that it is hard to find volunteers.  She then mentioned maybe have a representative from different offices.   Seelig asked how do we handle this if we get out of the business.  Garron suggested reaching out to other towns to see how they handle recyclables and Seelig said he can do that.  
SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS 

Dog Hearing – Thomas Wilson – 134 Holmes Street

At 7:45 p.m., in accordance with MGL Chapter 140, Section 157, Roy opened a hearing to address an incident where a dog owned by Thomas Wilson was loose and attacked another dog. The hearing was held at the request of Mr. Joseph Botelho, owner of the dog that was attacked. The following individuals were present and sworn in by Notary Public Pamela J. McSherry:

	Noreen Callahan
	Animal Control Officer

	Joseph Botelho
	owner of the injured dog

	Nancy Botelho
	owner of the injured dog

	Joao Chaves
	Police Chief

	Brian Kling
	Animal Inspector

	Robert McDonnell
	Halifax Police Officer

	Thomas Wilson
	dog Owner

	Destiny Newell
	girlfriend of the dog owner

	Ted Benner
	Halifax Police Sergeant

	Melvin Conroy
	Resident
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Roy: 
Before we begin, I just wanted to ask Officer McDonnell if he could please start with his testimony of what happened with this incident.  If you could just, please explain what happened during this incident 

Officer McDonnell:

On March 16th just past eight o’clock I was in a marked cruiser at the Lindy’s parking lot facing Annawon Drive.  I look up I see a gentleman the gentleman in the brown jacket (he pointed to Mr. Botelho) just walking his dog heading down Annawon Drive nothing out of the ordinary then I hear a dog barking didn’t think anything of it kind of got louder and closer so I looked over to my right that’s when I saw the dog running down the stairs to the gate, squeeze his way through the gate ran over to the little dog kind of got into his face just really started barking at it just grabbed it and latched on to the dog and started swinging it like a rag doll. That time I ran out of my cruiser I ran over; that’s when Mr. Wilson was running down his stairs running to the gate.  Mr. Wilson opened the gate he ran over and grabbed his dog off brought his dog back inside.  We noticed the injuries on his dog that’s when Sgt. Benner arrives.  His wife later came by moments later they picked up the dog to take the dog to the animal hospital.   

Roy: Okay thank you officer.  Sgt. Benner do you anything more to offer?

Sgt. Benner:

I showed up after the fact when it happened.  When I did show up Mr. Wilson and the victims dog injured dog were there.  Observed injury to the back-left quarter of the dog.  That’s about it.

Roy:

Okay thank you sir.  Okay we’re going to turn to the dog owners.  Thank you for being here and who’s going to speak first?

Roy: Oh my God (looked at the pictures of the injured dog)

Millias: Ya it’s awful.
J. Botelho: 

My name is Joseph Botelho.  On March 16, 2019 at approximately 8:08 I was coming on my return trip from Chestnut around Route 36 and I passed in front of the Lindy’s store.  I passed behind the police cruiser and because I saw that the car was trying the officer preparing to move and to be safe I’m going to take the back and by the time when I reached the rear back tire of the police cruiser I could hear the sound of a dog running down the stairway of apartment 134 Annawon.  I think it’s on the street I’m sorry and the dog came through the gate I could see the dog pushing its way through the right bottom corner of the gate and pushing his way out and he came towards my dog.  And he grabbed my poor dog from the back like a rag rag doll and started shaking and then he put quite a few puncture wounds and lacerations.

Roy: We have seen the pictures it’s pretty gruesome.  

J. Botelho:

And also, they also discovered at the hospital that my dog had been also bitten on the around the neck.  

Roy: Thank you sir. And so, could you please continue as who broke up the dog.

J. Botelho: 

I tried on my own try to kick the dog, but I couldn’t do it.  Mr. Wilson came down and he picked up the dog almost at the same time the officer was preparing to come to my rescue and he pulled the dog away and the police officer was very helpful in offering a ride to the local VCA in Bridgewater but we elected to go to the one in Weymouth.  I called my wife for a ride, but he had offered to give me a ride.  

Roy: And how is the dog doing now? 
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J. Botelho: She is doing a little bit better.

Roy: And I would imagine that you accumulated a large amount of veterinarian bills.  

J. Botelho: Yes, we have accumulated an amount $4,643.38.  

Millias: And that’s to date?

J. Botelho: Up to date yes.

Roy: Thank you sir. You may sit. Thank you.  Noreen.

ACO Callahan:

I came after the fact and I discovered that this was not the first offense.  We have had an issue with the dog in January 2017.

Roy: Yes, I have a copy of that record and that dog hearing.

ACO Callahan:

And you know part of the conditions from the Board was to make sure the dog was on a leash at all times.  He was given a copy of the leash law.  He was required to have his dog licensed and secured vaccinated at all times.  He failed to do that, so he was issued a citation that evening for a $110 for being vicious a dog being vicious second offense and no license again. 

Roy: And the dog did not have its inoculation?

ACO Callahan: No, it did not.

Roy: I have record that the rabies expired on 3/2/17.

ACO Callahan: I believe it was June of 17.

Roy:

Yes, ya that I what I just said. And so, did your dog have to go through special treatment because of the lack of rabies.

J. Botelho: Yes ma’am

Roy: Okay thank you sir.

J. Botelho:

She had to have one of those rabies boosters because she had to have one in the beginning of March a regular one but at the hospital they decided to give her a booster. 

Roy: Okay thank you sir. 

N.  Botelho: Can I clarify something?

Roy: Sure.  

N.  Botelho:

Actually she was due to have her rabies shot next year and it just boosted her up but I also wanted to note that during the two weeks we had her at home where she couldn’t’ go out except on leash or whatever she had to wear a cone it was really difficult for her she didn’t eat much she lost a lot of weight and she had to go back because she caught an infection.  So, they had to treat her for the infection.

Roy: So, does that four thousand dollars include the infection?

N.  Botelho: That includes that. 

Roy: Thank you.  Mr. Wilson.  Hi, could you just give me your account of the day? 

Wilson: Well ya but first things first.  The dog does have its rabies vaccination.  It’s up to date.

Roy: When now it is but it wasn’t at …

Selectmen Meeting - April 9, 2019




                                   Page 10
Wilson: Oh, it’s been up to date.  This is old. 

Roy: Okay so when did you have your dog inoculated?

Wilson: I don’t really have great vision I can’t … 

ACO Callahan: Do you have the Halifax …

Wilson: 

I have a piece of paper.  I do not have the license yet.  I’m disabled I didn’t have the money this year to get the license.  I’m waiting on disability to give … (he handed the piece of paper and tag to officer McDonnell to show the Board) can you take this thank you and this too this is the tag I took off his collar.   

Seelig: Noreen if you want also, I can make copies of those. 

Wilson:

I just want to say right away that I’m a dog lover and I’m very sorry that all of this happened.  What happened that night was my girlfriend doesn’t exactly know Rufus’ back story she …  I’ve had him his whole life, I’ve only been with Destiny about two years and she doesn’t understand that he’s dog aggressive and when there is a dog around you can’t let him out.  He was attacked when he was eight months old.  I have all the vet bills from that, and he has been dog aggressive ever since.  This winter a plow truck destroyed my gate and I’ve been begging my landlord begging my landlord begging my landlord to fix the gate.  He now has fixed the gate because something happened.  So now he fixed the gate.  The gates fixed I have photos of the fixed gate.  Wasn’t something that obviously didn’t want to happen.  I’ve talked to this gentleman before in the past and I said to him hey our dogs really don’t get along if you could take a different route to avoid anything happening that would be awesome my gates messed up.  He never …  he ignored my not warning I don’t know what word to use but I tried to avoid this happening.  I was taking Rufus out while the gates being fixed on a leash but when Destiny walked out that night, she did notice that he snuck out behind her and he got through the gate and he attacked his dog.  I am very sorry for this I hope you know.  Want the record to show I’m extremely sorry for what happened to her dog.  I would never want that to happen.  When she showed up, I asked the gentleman over and over again I offered him a ride to the vet I told him I would obviously pay the vet bills and to let me know if I could get him there right away I would have.  He wouldn’t even talk to me.  He would not respond to me the whole time until his wife showed up and then his wife screamed your dog’s f-ing dead you dog’s f-ing dead I’m gonna kill your f-ing dog.  

Roy: well you can imagine that it was pretty emotional. 

Wilson:

No, I understand that but before she pulled up … you can ask the officer here I don’t know his name you can ask him before she pulled up, I was terribly polite to this gentleman.  I expressed my apologies over and over again and I asked him time and time again if I could help him get to the vet or do anything for him.  I went upstairs I got his dog a towel.  I tried to hold it on the dog, but his dog was obviously apprehensive of being touched by anybody because it had just been bit.

Roy: Sure

Wilson: 

And I’m very sorry this happened.  It wasn’t intentional on my part at all.  I’ve let my landlord know time and time again how important that gate is for my dog.  And now it is fixed but you know that doesn’t make it okay what happened I’m just letting you know now it is fixed and I have picture of it if you would like to see.

Roy:

A couple of things Mr. Wilson you know we did hold a hearing back in 2017 and of which you did not …
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Wilson: I did want to actually, I’m glad you said something.

Roy: You did not attend that hearing.

Wilson:

I never even got a notice for that hearing.  I didn’t get Noreen didn’t bring me a piece of paperwork saying my dog had be on a leash at all times. 

Roy: That was a letter. That was letter that was sent from this office. 

Wilson: I didn’t get any of that information.  

Roy: That was a letter sent to Mr. Thomas Wilson at 134 Holmes Street.

Wilson:

I understand that ma’am, but I did not get it because if I did get it, I’d be at the hearing just like I am tonight.

Roy: No, I’m sorry sir
Garron: Why do you let her complete 

Roy:

Not only did you not attend the hearing of which we sent a separate letter saying we are having a hearing but this letter was sent to you after the hearing when you did not come to the hearing and we held the hearing and based on our findings we sent you this letter saying these are the requirements for your dog.  

Wilson:

I understand but I have a terrible disconnect with my landlord downstairs. I don’t have a mailbox 

Roy: This does not … Okay









         
Wilson:

So, it didn’t come to it goes into the store and the guy downstairs he can hardly even read the names.  He doesn’t give me my … 

Roy: Were you aware that your dog had bitten another dog back in 2017?

Wilson:

He didn’t actually bite the other dog he scratched Mel’s dog right here (pointed to Mel).  He scratched when he came out of the fence and his wife was out there.  He scratched his dog and it even said in the vet report that it was a scratch.  And they contacted me and then I didn’t hear another thing from them.  I was waiting for them to contact me and tell me how much the vet was and how I could help, and Mel never contacted me.  I don’t know what choice they made to not contact me ever again.

Roy: We have …

Wilson:

I’m not like a scary person I’m not you know he could knock on my door and talk to me about it.  I would have been more than happy to help out.  You know my dog was attacked when he was eight months old this is why he’s dog aggressive.  I have taken precautions to make sure my dog doesn’t get out but my fence was ruined this winter and  I asked my landlord over and over again to fix it and now he fixes it after something happens.

Roy: Mr. Wilson your dog has as you have admitted exhibited aggressive behavior towards dogs.

Wilson: Towards dogs.

Roy:

Yes, and regardless if you received this letter or not you knew that your dog had scratched or bit another dog and you knew that the town had been involved because Noreen had interviewed you.
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Wilson:

I didn’t’ know the town was involved.  I knew I remember talking to Mel and his wife, but Noreen never stopped by my house and said anything about happened with Mel’s dog.  Not once.

Roy: Regardless of that you know that your dog is an aggressive dog.  

Wilson: I’m not denying that my dog is aggressive towards other dogs.

Roy:

And if your dog had already attacked another dog and I understand that you are saying you take all of the precautions that you can the truth of the matter is the dog got loose and created a terrible wound on this other dog.

Wilson: I am not denying that.  I understand that.

Roy:

Yes, so what have you done … cause you’ve probably after that initial bite what have you done.  Have you looked at dog training to try and get the dog over its aggression? I mean obviously you’re saying that you can’t afford the ten-dollar license fee.  

Wilson: Dog training (inaudible)

Roy: I mean can you really take care of the dogs.

Wilson: I’m sorry I’m leaning my legs are messed up.

Roy: You may sit you don’t have to stand.

Wilson: 
Okay.  I have not taken him to a dog training course as of yet because I haven’t been able to afford it.  I’ve been out of work since my motorcycle accident and dog training is very expensive.  I will look into it a little bit further and try and borrow the money to get it done if I need to.

Roy:

But this is the thing if you can’t take care of your dog then you don’t have the means to take care of him.  

Wilson: Well I do take care him.  

Newell: He takes very good care of him.  

Wilson: I take care of my dog. 

Roy: Meaning you know the dog is aggressive. 

Wilson: I will him to a class. 

Roy: And you don’t … and if you can’t afford to even license the dog.

Garron: Can I …

Wilson: I’ll get it licensed tomorrow.

Garron:

You had two years with this young lady living with you to express how this dog acts around other animals.  She should have known or look for it.  Do you have anything in writing from the owner of the building saying that the fence was broken, and it wouldn’t try and fix it.  Do you have any evidence at all? 

Newell: The officer right there saw him squeeze through the fence and where … 
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Garron:

That’s not the point.  The question I’m asking is did you get anything did you write to the owner of the building.  Did you get anything in writing from him saying that you needed to have the door fixed?

Wilson: I can literally call the owner right now and he can …
Garron: Was he aware that the dog was … 

Wilson: Yes

Garron: Vicious and changes and he still didn’t do anything?

Wilson: Yes yes

Garron: And you didn’t push the issue?

Wilson: I did over and over again. 

Newell: He tried having a lease drawn up saying that he had to fix everything. 

Roy: Yes, but if he …

Garron: Did you know the dog was vicious and aggressive against other dogs?

Newell:

Yes, but it was late at night I didn’t know he had gotten out behind me.  I stepped out on the porch to smoke a cigarette and he ran out right behind me and then he ran down the stairs and that’s when I chased after him when I saw the other dog.  

Wilson: She was down there first the officer left that out.  She was down there first.

Officer McDonnell: I didn’t leave it out I didn’t see her.

Garron: Officer McDonnell

Newell: 

When I got to the dog I first thing I was trying to have him pick up his dog.  He has a really tiny dog.  Our dog is huge and then when I got down there it was basically like … it was really scary to me you know what I mean.  

Roy: I can imagine. 

Newell:

I have a dog (inaudible) I have this little dog and The officer had a taser pointed out so I didn’t know how to get in the middle of that to separate them and that’s when Tom came running down the stairs and got the dog and brought him upstairs.  Rufus still … that dog was a really tiny dog and he probably doesn’t even realize that it was a dog.  You know what I mean.

Roy: It doesn’t matter the dog.  It doesn’t matter the damage that dog did and after …

Wilson: Ma’am we’re not disputing that.

Roy:

No I understand that but what I’m saying to you is you know you have an aggressive dog you can’t afford to get training for the dog but you could at least YouTube it and maybe work with the dog on your own to try and figure it out.

Wilson: His dog aggression came from years back.

Roy:

But if you can’t handle the dog if you can’t handle a dog’s behavior that’s aggressive then you shouldn’t have that dog.  It is not fair to the dog to not be taught not to do that.  It’s not fair to their dog that because somebody wasn’t paying attention the dog got loose after it had already exhibited that behavior before.  
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The dog had already scratched or nipped at another dog and so that’s a pattern and that pattern didn’t get addressed.  And you’re saying that you didn’t get two letters, but you knew it happened you knew it happened.  And so here we sit here what do we do with this very aggressive dog that the owner doesn’t …

Wilson: Dog aggressive dog.

Roy: Have the means it’s a dog its an aggressive dog.  

Wilson: It’s not aggressive towards humans by any means.

Roy: I’m gonna Mel

Conroy:

If I may add.  I did approach Tom after the incident to try and follow up on rabies vaccination at the time he wasn’t able to provide it, so we had to at VCA that evening.  So, I had followed up with him another day.  When I went to his door the dog was extremely aggressive when I knocked on the door.  So the dog is an aggressive dog I understand there are dog aggressive dogs there are people aggressive dogs there are lots of aggressive dogs.  The dog in itself is aggressive.  

Wilson: I guarantee … 
Conroy:

And there is nothing wrong with an aggressive dog provided that owner of the dog provides an environment that the dog can flourish.  That has not been my experience with this dog.  

Roy:

Thank you, Mel.  Because its our charge to keep both the humans and the dogs of this community safe.

Wilson:

I’d like to state that my dog is almost eight years old and in eight years that he’s been alive he’s only had two occasions where something has happened.  One was a scratch where he scratched Mel’s dog and the other was unfortunately when this happened. 

Roy: A mauling.  Mel

Conroy: 

If I may add the only reason my dog was only scratched  was my wife was able to corral my dog lift the dog up and let the dog in question was able to get at my dog by jumping at my wife and through my to get to my dog.  

Roy: And let’s establish this small dog …

Wilson: But your dog was not bit. 

Roy: Was mauled it was not bit it was mauled.

Conroy: Only because it was being held 

Wilson: You can’t say that without … 

Roy: Do you want to see the pictures of this dog?

Wilson: No, I’m just saying he can’t say that my dog ….  I’ve seen the pictures.

Roy: Okay.  That’s a mauling

Newell: Nancy took to Facebook to talk about all of this and … 
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Wilson:

Destiny leave that alone.  Just leave that alone.  Ma’am the bottom line is I am very sorry that this happened, and I will take more precautions with my animal to make sure this does not happen again.  I have already grilled my landlord to get the gate fixed its fixed.  I’m going even further, and I’m am going to pay to get the whole side of my gate turned vinyl so he can’t even see people or dogs walking by.  I will take my dog to animal training courses and I will keep him muzzled as long as he is outside.  

Roy:

How are you going to do that when you don’t have the means to even to come up with the money license the dog?

Wilson:

I will have to borrow from her.  I’ll borrow it from my girlfriend and get it done.  Until my disability comes in.  I’ve had the dog for eight years and I’ve taking care of him for eight years.  He has a five-year-old little girl that depends on him being there.  She’s known him since she was a baby.  I’m gonna take the precautions necessary to get it done.  I’ve already said countless times that I’m willing to pay the medical bills.  I’m obviously not going to be able to them all at once but I’m willing to chip away at it if I can.  I have said that.  I’m not coming in here you know trying to say that I’m not at fault I know that I’m at fault and I’m sorry for this.  If I could have been at the other hearing I would have been.  I did not get the letter. 

Roy: Okay

Wilson: I also didn’t get the letter about the leash.  It doesn’t hurt for Maureen if …

Roy: Noreen

Wilson: What’s her name?

Roy: Noreen

Wilson: I’m sorry 

Roy: That’s okay

Wilson: Noreen is not a very common name.

Roy: You can sit if your …  please sit its okay you can still talk but you don’t have to stand.    

Wilson:  I’m shaking cause of my knee.

Roy:

No that’s fine but you can stay seated.  So, I appreciate your words and I’m gonna move on to the dog owner that was injured for a moment okay.

Wilson: Go ahead. 

J. Botelho: May I may I speak?

Roy: Yes

J. Botelho:

I have to add one other encounter with this dog.  It was reported to the other Animal Control Officer and if I’m not mistaken it was either at the end at the very beginning of 2016.  This dog came through the gate because at the time they only had one latch one top latch on the gate and that was in front of the sidewalk in front of the entrance to the playground across the street on 36.

Roy: Yes
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J. Botelho:

and I was just before hitting the stop sign of Annawon and the dog came bolting towards me and at the time I had one of those pepper sprays and I was ready to defend my dog and I heard Mr. Wilson say don’t don’t don’t do it and I didn’t do it and the dog came within five feet of me in other words … and as a result of that report to the Animal Control Officer a second latch a lousy second latch was installed on the bottom of the gate.  That is required to reach the post the adjoining post.  

Roy:

And not that you should be expected to but my question for you is Mr. Wilson alluded to the fact that he asked you not to walk by his house.

J. Botelho:

No as a matter of fact I …if I … when the dog was down first of all he never told me that.  I always walk on the other opposite side of the road.

Roy: Okay

J. Botelho:

And if I came he saw me come close to his chain link fence just past his gate it was because I’m a volunteer for the Halifax Beautification Committee and I pick up some of the debris and then dispose in my trash.   That’s the only reason that did there was some trash coming out of the people buying items at the store.

Roy: Okay thank you so much.

N. Botelho: Can I speak?

Roy: Ya

N. Botelho:

I’d like to show you two pictures. (she went up to the table and showed the BOS pictures) This one was about five days after the incident.  I circled this this is the way the gate always looked for the last I don’t know how many years.  And this was on March the 23rd when they claimed somebody claimed that they had completely fixed this gate you can see there’s a little bit further over, but the latch wasn’t even locked.

Wilson: Okay since we’re showing pictures may I show you what the gate looks like now?

N. Botelho: One second I’m not finished.
Roy: Sure

N. Botelho:

Excuse me I’m speaking.  We walk by this property a lot.  Like my husband said we try walking away from … 

Roy: If you could just wait, she …

Wilson: (came up to the table) I’m just dropping it (his phone) off so you can see it.

Roy: You can no no you can finish speaking.

N. Botelho: I don’t want to be even near him. 

Roy: No that’s fine.

N. Botelho: I’m sorry

Wilson: Cause I’m a bad person like what.

Roy: Sir please

Garron: Excuse me excuse me that’s enough. 
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Wilson: That was totally uncalled for. 

Roy: Please please

Officer McDonnell: Stop don’t start.

Wilson: Start what?

Officer McDonnell: Keep it down and listen.

Wilson: She’s the person you should be telling not to start. 

Officer McDonnell: I’m telling you.

Wilson: Jesus.  Be anywhere near him. 
N. Botelho: I’m sorry that was intimidating to me.

Roy: No, I understand 

N. Botelho: and also

Roy: I understand I understand.

N. Botelho: 

I will admit to swearing when I got there.  Absolutely the minute I saw my dog I lost it and I did say ‘your dog is dead I’m going to kill your dog”. 

Roy: I’m sure you did

N. Botelho:

What meant by that was I wanted it euthanized.  That’s … it did come out that way because I was so frustrated.

Roy: I’m sure that’s what you meant.  I’m sure that’s what you meant. 

N. Botelho: 

I’m gonna to get back to the fence.  When we walk by that property, we use to walk by pretty much every single day either it was him and me or him alone or me alone.  I haven’t been by there yet not once with my dog since.  I’m afraid scared stiff to go there.

Roy: I’m sure you sare.

N. Botelho:

That’s the only entrance I have to be able to go out on to 36 and he walks all the time people know him from the dog.  They know him from running and we just can’t even go by there.  We drive by there because it’s an entrance to our home.  I mean I have no other option.  I could through Chestnut I suppose but … I can’t walk my dog down 36.

Roy: But the dog is not normally out there unattended?

N. Botelho: The dog … and this is another thing he claims 

Roy: Is that true?

N. Botelho: he claims … I haven’t seen the dog since this incident.

Roy: I know but prior to that was the dog in the … 

N. Botelho: The dog is out there all the time.

Roy: Just hanging out in the yard unattended?

N. Botelho:  Just hanging out.

Roy: Okay
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N. Botelho: 

So, no matter what he says 

Wilson: No, he wasn’t.

N. Botelho: 

That is a lie because I walk the dog myself by there with that dog and he barks at us every single time we walk by.  And my dog is leashed aggressive.  She barks crazy when she is on the leash.

Roy: Okay.

Garron: why do we take a moment to let things cool down.

Roy:

Ya that’s fine. Okay will all take a deep breath.  I’m going to come back to you next.  I know you (meaning Officer McDonnell) have to are you still staying for another minute.

Officer McDonnell: I’ll stay

Roy: Okay thank you.  Okay Noreen

ACO Callahan: Yes

Roy: Did you have any interactions with the dog after this bite?

ACO Callahan: No

Roy: You have not?

ACO Callahan: I have not even seen the dog. 

Roy: Why

ACO Callahan: 

Since … I’ve never seen the dog every time I’ve driven by in let’s say the last six months.

Roy: Okay because typically because okay

Wilson: I keep him inside.

Garron: Excuse me

Roy: Okay  

Garron: Mr.

Wilson: I’m sorry I was just …  it just felt like somebody to say … 

Garron: You’ll get your opportunity. 

Wilson: I’m sorry.

Roy: And your phone went down.

Wilson: Ya it just shut whenever you want to look at the pictures, I’ll just show you.

Roy: Okay

Wilson: Would you like to look at them

Roy: Ya I’ll look at them quickly if you don’t and then I need to finish up asking …

Wilson:

This is the gate now.  You can scroll to the right there is a few different photos from further away.  You can see the new dirt, fresh concrete, the poles been totally replaced, the whole entire fence has been replaced, the gate on the opposite side all brand new.

Roy: Okay
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Wilson:

Solid Fence company came and did it and I’m gonna personally pay to have the whole corner of the fence near the street turn white vinyl so he can’t even see through it.

Roy:

Okay.  So why don’t you have a seat for another minute if you don’t mind.  Okay so typically and I’m going to get to you Brian because you’re the Animal Inspector, but typically when there is a dog bite and the Animal Control Officer would go to the property to interview and does spend a little bit of time with the dog and the Animal Inspector would also go because the dog needs to be quarantined for ten days.  Did you both have … were you … did you have the opportunity to do that?

ACO Callahan:

It was supper time since eight o’clock at night Mr. Wilson came outside the dog was already inside.  This was well after the incident, so I didn’t have cause to see the dog.  We let Mr. Wilson know that the Animal Inspector will be by to quarantine the dog.  The corporation factor is not the greatest especially when tension were very high. 

Roy: Yes, I would imagine that, and I think Officer McDonnell had shared that with you.

ACO Callahan:

Right so, it’s difficult to get your point across a far as that goes.  Anytime I’ve had dealings with Mr. Wilson he’s very forward and he wants to let his position be known as opposed to stopping and listening to what is being said.  So, we have an issue with that.

Roy: Mr. I’m sorry Officer McDonnell would you concur with that conclusion. 

Officer McDonnell: Yes

Roy: Thank you. Sergeant Benner would you concluded that. 

Sgt. Benner:

Yes, there was automatically statements made that the dog was not going to taken from Mr. Wilson.

Wilson:

What would anybody say if somebody was threatening to take their dog, they’d say no you’re not.  

Roy: They weren’t threatening to do that. 

Sgt. Benner: We never said that we were going to take the dog.

Wilson: They … somebody honestly and he can concur I’m sorry I still don’t know your name.

Roy: Officer McDonnell

Wilson:

Officer McDonnell I was I was you know completely calm and apologetic and everything until she pulled up and said she was going to kill my f------ dog I’m sorry for swearing but that’s what she said and until that happened everything was fine.  I wasn’t saying anything but once she said that it sprung in my mind that they were going to try and euth …  they were going try and come and take my dog, so I shut my gate and said nobodies taking my dog that’s all that happened I stood in front of my gate waiting for them to tell me to go inside. 

Roy: Okay

Wilson: That’s about it.

Roy:

Alright thank you Mr. Wilson.  Mr. Kling, who is our Animal Inspector, could you please explain to us if you were able to spend some time with Rufus at all.
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Kling:

Twice two occasions had to implement the quarantine and then release him from quarantine.

Roy: And what was your experience with the dog?

Animal Inspector Kling:

I showed up with two police officers I forget their names.  On both occasions we went up to the deck to the second-floor apartment.  After some knocking and some discussion Mr. Wilson and the dog came out went down the stairs, I observed the dog I implemented the quarantine.  I did observe that the – he’s a very powerful dog a very strong dog and Mr. Wilson was having some difficulty containing him on a leash and that the collar wasn’t really appropriate – the dog could slip out of the collar.

Roy:

Mr. Wilson I would imagine you alluded to some injuries is it hard for you to … he’s such a powerful dog. 

Wilson:

Well he’s ninety-eight pounds and he’s really strong and when he wants to meet somebody new just wants to drag me towards that person.  But I mean he just walked by the animal inspector and then walked back upstairs.  He does have a harness I just I couldn’t find it that day when the animal inspector came, and I don’t walk him too much anymore he gets walked by my girlfriend and sometimes, but my leg is totally destroyed. 

Roy: Right cause I would imagine that it’s really hard for you to manage it.

Wilson: When coming downstairs with him pulling me it’s really scary. 

Roy:

But if you know that your dog has the ability to get loose then I would hope that you would put a collar on it that would make sure that that dog would not be getting loose. 

Wilson:

That was just his house collar that he wears he usually wears a harness when he goes outside.

Roy: Yes but these are the things that I want you to pay attention to. 

Wilson:

I understand that, but I just said that I couldn’t find the harness when the animal inspector came.

Roy:

I understand but you take the time to find the harness because you are in charge of keeping your dog secure so no one in the town or any animals in the town are hurt and you need to really understand that.

Wilson: I do now.

Roy
So, Sir if you understood it you would make sure there was a proper collar on that dog when you brought it outside to meet a stranger. 

Wilson: It was just a normal collar.

Roy: I know but it was loose.

Wilson: It was tight to two fingers

Roy:

If the animal inspector if the animal inspector who is an expert in this field felt that the collar was not substantial enough to keep the dog from being loose then you need to pay attention to that.
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Wilson: I’ll make sure his harness is on every time he leaves the house.

Roy: Ya I … Tom do you have anything.

Wilson: Isn’t that what you want me to say.

Millias: I don’t know how much …

Roy: I want you to follow through with it.  

Wilson: I’m going to. 

Roy: You can say it 

Wilson: I’m going to. You don’t … you don’t know my character. 

Roy: But I don’t have the confidence that you will following through with it. 

Wilson; Why do you have the confidence that I would follow through with it? 

Roy: Because you let a dog who already bit a dog …

Wilson: I did not let the dog loose he snuck by my girlfriend and got out that was in the house.

Roy:

But you let a dog who showed aggression toward other dogs and you didn’t do anything about it by trying to train the dog not to be so aggressive.  I’m sorry.  Tom do you have anything to offer.

Millias:

A lot already been said so its hard to follow-up other than then fact that it appears you don’t have control of the dog at all times and that’s an issue for me.  Clearly the gate was a rye and you knew it was a rye.  Your landlord wasn’t cooperating you can’t leave it there you can’t leave it there. You have to follow up with something else.  You have to do whatever you have to do to your landlord file an action against him whatever.  I don’t know what your terms of your lease agreement were, and I don’t care at this point but what’s obvious now is that you don’t at all times have control of the dog.  I personally don’t have confidence that you are going to have control of this dog at all times based on what I’ve been hearing.  That’s a big concern for me.  We can’t let people be walking down the street unaware.  I mean some people are at least aware but there are other people who will never be aware.  That’s a huge problem.  I don’t see an easy fix to this.

Roy: Noreen do you had any recommendations?     






ACO Callahan:

I mean as a responsible dog owner if you knew that your gate was unsecure if my gate fell down you would sure walk that line you would put barricades up, you would put a zip line, you would do everything to keep your dog contained.  

Millias: Put a piece of chain with a lock on it.

ACO Callahan:

Exactly board whatever.  Whatever makeshift thing you could do to make your dog safe and other dogs safe.  I didn’t see any of that.  None of it.  So, I think it was just left up to the landlord he doesn’t fix it oh well and god forbid it gets out. 

Wilson:

If I may add and still sitting in my yard next to the gate is a large wooden pallet.  When my dog did go outside with me walking him, I would put the pallet in front of the gate.  The pallet still sitting there.  I wasn’t planning him going outside we had just as the Officer had said we had just got home from the store and we were going inside, and he snuck out behind my girlfriend.  I wasn’t planning on him being outside or I would have had the pallet blocking the gate.  
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Millias:

But clearly that can happen.  That pallet should have been up when you got home just in case the dog got out.

Garron: 

No, it shouldn’t have it should have that he had him on leash because that is what the letter we sent to him said that anytime the dogs outside 

Wilson: But once again he snuck out behind my girlfriend it, he wasn’t a planned …

Garron: Well you just said you were going into the house. 

Wilson: The dog wasn’t going into the house. 

Garron:

Because you were just going grocery you were delivering groceries to your house you were going into the house.  Was your girlfriend going back out the door then?

Wilson: She was going … she wasn’t with me. 

Roy: She went out to have a cigarette that’s what you she.

Wilson:

She was going out o have a cigarette.  She wasn’t with me.  Me and my friend Richie had gone shopping.  We came in the house and she was going out to have a cigarette and he snuck out behind her.  It wasn’t a planned time for him to go outside.  I usually take him outside accordingly on leash with the pallet in front of the thing.  I was taking precautions because the gate was fixed.  Before without even the dog bite situation another thing I was worried about was him getting hit by a car.  So, I was taking precautions to keep the gate secure.  This is just a happens stance where it was he snuck out the gate the gate wasn’t blocked it was just a really bad situation and I am sorry for that and I have said that repeatedly.  I will take the steps that I need take from now on.  I will keep him muzzled when he goes outside.  I will get a harness for him it will stayed leashed and also, I will enroll him into dog training courses if I need to. 

Garron:

Well you have to forgive me but based on what the information that you have given us today.  You said you didn’t have the ten bucks to get the rabies shot.

Wilson: I can get all the money from my girlfriend.

Garron: Well you had opportunity before to get ten dollars to pay for the license. 

Wilson: Have you ever asked your wife to lend you money?

Garron: We’re not discussing that we’re discussing your …

Millias: You had a responsibility.

Garron: You had a responsibility.

Wilson: And I’m not denying it.

Garron:

First of all, if you can’t handle the dog how is somebody who weighs half your weight if not more gonna walk the dog and the dog was pulling you? 

Wilson:

I’m just …  I’m saying I will get …   I’m not saying I will leave it up to her to take the dog out.  I will get the money from her. 

Roy: Ya but your knee like you just said … 
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Garron:

You said you’re injured.  You can’t go down the stairs with the dog because you might trip and fall pulling the dog down the stairs because of pulling.  That is just what you said.  

Roy: Your knee you can’t even 

Wilson:

Ya I said when he meets somebody new, he pulls me down the steps and its scary because of my leg that’s exactly what I said.

Roy:

I’m sure it is scary and that’s the thing its not with any disrespect, but you can’t handle the dog.

Wilson: I understand that.

Roy: And so how do we what do we do so we’re sitting here … 

Wilson:

So, what don’t we try enrolling him in dog class that’s what you recommended?  I’m willing to do that.

Roy:

But I so this is the deal this is the deal you’re saying … I appreciate that you’re saying you’re sorry, I appreciate that you want to make things whole with the owner of the dog that was mauled but you’ve got two instances so far that the dog got lose …

Wilson: In eight years.

Roy: Doesn’t matter my dog never bit another dog and my dogs never bit …

Wilson: Well you dog was never attacked when he was eight months old either mine was. 

Roy: Whatever you can make up an excuse for anything. 

Wilson: I’m not making excuses.

Roy: It’s not acceptable to have even one bite from another dog.

Wilson: I’m not saying it is

Roy:

So now we’ve got two and then we sit here and we say okay do we go for a third do we roll the dice and pray that this dog doesn’t get loose and really kill a dog or hurt an owner while they’re trying to save their dog.  We have to think about the health of the 

Wilson: Understandable but …

Roy: People of the Town of Halifax.     









Wilson: Their dog did not die and its still alive and what you are … maybe 

Roy: I could have easily died.  

Wilson:

The other suggestion that you’re trying to make is that you will euthanize my dog which takes it away from me who has had him for eight years my daughter who has had him for five.

Roy: I would feel terrible about that and I would feel terrible for the dog.

Wilson: So, let’s not go down that road.  Let me take …

Roy: And I would feel terrible for the dog.
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Wilson:

Give me the chance now that I’m actually here in person at the hearing give me the chance to get the dog enrolled.  Keep him muzzled.  She said so herself she hasn’t seen the dog outside in six to eight months.  She hasn’t seen him outside by himself.   I have been taking precautions.  

Roy: I don’t feel comfortable. 

Wilson:

This is point where it was an accident.  It happened I’m sorry for it.  I’ve told them countless times that I’m willing to start paying for their vet bills.  I don’t know what else you want me to tell you.  I’m trying I’m literally sitting here saying that I’ll do everything you want me to do.  I’ll take the precautions necessary, but I mean for me there’s no other option I can’t even think about the alternative. 

N. Botelho: I’d like to say something.

Roy: Sure

N. Botelho: Can you look at this picture again can you tell me where that pallet is thank you.

Roy: I can’t tell from this photo.

N. Botelho: There’s never been a pallet that I’ve seen.

J. Botelho: There’s never 
N. Botelho: If he saying it’s near the gate where is it.

Roy: There isn’t a pallet.

N. Botelho: Thank you. 

Wilson: Cause it is not in that photo.  There’s a pallet there. 

Roy:

But what we have at this point is we have photos showing that the gate has been fixed and I understand your frustration and I’m sure you are scarred from this whole event.  I cannot even imagine what you both have gone through with this incident and I want you to know that and again we love dogs and as Troy will say it is not the dog’s fault it’s the people’s fault.  Whenever we hold a hearing nine times out of ten it’s because the dog has not been properly trained or restrained.  Right so this is how these things happen.

N. Botelho: I’d like to say one more thing.

Roy: Sure

N. Botelho:

The dog that we have that was attacked she was also a rescue she was attacked she has scars from before she is also in a halter she’s always on a leash and we’ve never had an incident with her and yes she does bark and she snarls because that’s what she does but she never has attacked anybody.         











Roy:

Well you need to get control of the snarling and all that stuff too because she may scare another dog.  So, let’s go there.  I mean like that’s the thing people need to pay attention to their dogs if they have any kind of aggressive behavior because any kind of aggressive behavior could turn into a bite to anybody.  Because you don’t know you might she might antagonize a dog that wouldn’t normally bite just by her demeanor.  So here we sit and I’m gonna be honest with you I would lean more towards euthanizing this dog because I don’t feel that you can handle the dog and it would be really hard for me to do that but I’d have to have total confidence that you can handle it and what I have is that you’ve been
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Wilson: Can you give me a chance 

Roy:

Very aggressive towards our Animal Control Officer and you haven’t been very cooperative and how do I know that you’re actually gonna follow through with it.  I don’t have a lot of confidence in you Mr. Wilson.

Wilson: Was I aggressive towards the animal control I wasn’t aggressive towards him.

Roy: No, I’m talking about Noreen.

Wilson:

I’m not aggressive.  We haven’t got along since I moved Halifax cause there was discrepancy with my dog license.  I had the dog licensed she said that I didn’t and then I showed her the proof and it went away.  Right now I don’t have the dog licensed. 

ACO Callahan:

He showed me this which is a rabies shot it is not a Halifax license. When he as hanging out the window 

Wilson:

I’m not talking about now I’m talking about before. I’m talking about four three years ago when I moved here. 

Roy: Yes 

ACO Callahan: of the second story 

Roy: Yes 

ACO Callahan:

He said the dog has a license (she said in in a sny manner which she said that is how he said it).

Roy: Yes I’m sure

ACO Callahan:

When I checked he did not have a Halifax license which he has not had for two years and he still does not have it.

Roy: Okay Troy.

Garron: As much as it …

Wilson:

Give me the chance to take the precautions necessary I’ll keep him muzzled; I’ll keep him harnessed.  I got the gate fixed and I’ll get him into animal classes. 

Garron:

Let me put it to you this way from my own experience I use to train dogs for police work I’ve had dog my whole life.  Dogs reflect the personality of the individual that owns them.  If you allow them to do things and get away with it if anything, you’re unfair to the dog cause you haven’t train her enough not to be aggressive to get into this kind of trouble.  And now you’re telling me that all of sudden when you’re a big chicken you’re gonna have all this fixed.  If your girlfriend and I don’t have no idea what your personal relationship is why haven’t you gone to that resource in the first place to have all these things done?  In the past all of sudden like you said the owner of the property just now fixed the gate after something happened.  Why you waiting now to say I’m gonna borrow money to go to training why didn’t you do it before? 
Wilson:

Well like I had said to you have you ever had to ask somebody to borrow money its not the greatest feeling.  I’ve just been taking precautions like not letting him out by himself bring him out on a leash until the gate was going to be fixed.  
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Garron:

Well right now I’m leaning very close to having the dog euthanized only because I really don’t believe that you’re going to do things you’re saying.

Wilson: Give me …

Garron: You may say good intent 

Wilson:

Give me the chance and have another hearing in a couple of weeks and then you’ll see that the dog will be licensed.  He be enrolled in classes.

Garron:

You have a eight year old dog that for eight years seven in a half years if you say he got attacked when he was eight months old, that has fumed with the internal agony that he’s afraid of all kinds of dogs and sometimes maybe people I’m not sure about that part of it but now all of sudden in two weeks your gonna train that on a eight year old dog? 

Wilson: No, I’m not saying in two weeks I’m saying in two weeks you can see …

Roy: He’s gonna to have the dog enrolled.

Wilson:

That I’m taking that I’m doing what I’m saying gonna do.  That is what I’m saying.  I’m not saying I’m just gonna fix Rufus overnight.  I’m saying let me prove to you that I’m going to take the steps to get him to a better mind state so he’s not dog aggressive anymore.  Allow me to do that.  The dog has a family.

Millias: You’ve had two years to do that.

Wilson: I was never

Roy: You knew the dog was aggressive. 

Wilson: You said in the letter I was never alerted

Roy:

Take the letter out of it.  Even if you didn’t get the letter.  As I said at the beginning of the hearing you knew the incident happened with Mr. Conroy’s dog you knew it happened so even if you didn’t receive the letter or two letters you knew about the incident.

Wilson: As far as the incident with Mel Conroy the dog my dog

Roy: Got loose

Wilson: Rufus he got loose he jumped up at the other dog and scratched its hind quarters.

Roy: Because she had to hold it up or else the dog might have had the same kind of injuries.

Wilson:

I didn’t know but I didn’t know but I understand that but I didn’t know that the dog was gonna bite somebody or not somebody another dog.  I just … you know that day he jumped up and scratched another dog.  I didn’t know he was gonna …  

Roy: No, I think that Mr. Conroy … 

Wilson: He’s never attacked anybody before Mr. Conroy’s dog.

Roy:

Mr. Wilson excuse me Mr. Wilson I am sure that Mr. Conroy explained to you that his wife saved his dog because if she hadn’t lifted the dog up so high then his dog may still may have had a similar injury to what these people have experienced.

Wilson: But we can’t talk we can’t talk about … he doesn’t have an injury. 
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Roy: But you know he went after him.  The dog went after Mel’s dog.  Correct?

Wilson: He jumped up and tried to get to him yes.

Roy: Exactly

Wilson: But he did not bite his dog.

Roy: Exactly.  Oh for all that is holy.

Wilson:

It’s not like … his wife is six five.  My dog is way taller than his wife is so if he was gonna bite Mr. Conroy’s dog he would have.  

Roy:

Mr. Conroy Mel I’m sorry did you explain how aggressive that dog had been to Mr. Wilson?

Wilson: He wasn’t there.

Conroy:

I was not there at the time of the incident.  I am only relaying my experience with Mr. Wilson.  I stopped after we had gone to the vet and asked for a rabies certificate if he had one updated because he could not provide one that night of the incident to the Animal Control Officer which is what forced us to go to the VCA in Weymouth  because of the hour.  We would have had there been no scratch and no blood any even if there was blood had he been able to provide a rabies vaccination certificate that night we may not have incurred the cost that we incurred going up to the VCA.  We may have been able to do something locally.  The VCAs are much more expensive veterinary service.  We felt it was our responsibility to get the dog there in case it needed to be (inaudible).
Roy: Did Mr. Wilson offer to pay for your vet bills? 

Conroy:

He vocalized his intent.  When my wife presented him with a bill that we reduced because Jack was scheduled for a rabies certificate that spring that we were have incurred that cost anyhow we wiped that off.  We didn’t what to burden him with unnecessary costs.  My sole reason for coming here this evening is to ensure that the Botelho’s receive renumeration for the cost they’ve incurred. 

Roy:

So, you’re saying that Mr. Wilson did alluded to the fact that he would reimburse you for your vet bills and you did not get reimbursed.

Conroy: Jennifer provided him with a bill he did not pay back.  

Roy: Mr. Wilson why did you not pay?
Wilson:

I have not heard from them.  I don’t know where their house is.  They didn’t give me a phone number.  She stopped by my house.  She said here’s a bill and then she disappeared.

Roy: Well the bill his address would have been on the bill I would have imagined.

Wilson: His address was not on the bill.  There was no address on the bill.

Conroy:

There is a copy of the bill here from the VCA with my wife’s name and our home address.

Roy: Okay thank you.  Noreen do you have a recommendation. 
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ACO Callahan:

This is a real tough decision.  I don’t want to blame the dog.  I don’t want to do that.  There is a positive that the fence has been repaired somewhat.  It’s still can be pushed on the right-hand side because I checked that today.

Wilson:
You can’t push on it it’s a fresh concrete.  I hope you didn’t push on it.  It just got done yesterday and it was soaking wet.
ACO Callahan:
Before I was interrupted when you push on the gate on the right-hand side the whole latching system will push away, and it doesn’t take much and if he pushed through another door he could very easily push through this one because its not secure its not tight enough. 

Millias: Is it a “C” clip is that what it is. 

ACO Callahan: Yes, it is it is. 

Wilson: It’s two “C” clips and the Solid fence guy assured me …

ACO Callahan:

Again, if you’re facing Lindy’s there are two fences on either side.  If you’re facing Lindy’s to the right side is one clip latch.

Millias: Did you happen to observe a pallet by any chance? 

ACO Callahan: No, I did not.  I don’t recall seeing a pallet. 

Millias: Just curious.

Wilson:

That was right next to my steps.  I can take a photo of it and be back here in five minutes if you want.

Millias:

When I first signed on to come on the Board of Selectmen I was admonished by several people.  You’re a gluten for punishment and I said what do you mean, and they said dogs dogs dogs and truthfully in four years the worst times I’ve had on this board have been dog hearings without any exception.  And its not the dog typically although occasionally it’s the dog but it’s the people who are handling the dog.  Again, I’ve heard you say several things tonight about renumeration, taking care of vet bills, getting the license, putting up a fence so he can’t see dogs.  I don’t see you having the resources to do all of those things effectively at one time.  I have really grave concerns that you can handle this animal.  

Wilson:

Give me chance to prove you wrong sir.  I will get the stuff done I promise you.  I don’t know what else that I say till I’m blue in the face but I can show you if you give me some … and since the incident has happened the dog has not been outside without a leash constantly.

Roy: And I’m gonna go back     







Wilson: every time

Roy:

I’m gonna go back to Mr. Conroy’s bill it had his address on it and you didn’t follow up with that.  How much was the bill for?

Conroy:

It was only $280.  We basically wrote it off as an uncollectable expense. We fortunately didn’t experience the same amount of trouble so we certainly weren’t gonna chase down two hundred dollars it wasn’t worth the two hundred dollars.
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Roy:

No, buts its two hundred dollars of your hard-earned money that you wouldn’t have had to do.

Conroy:

Ya I know and I’ll always feel a little remorse and guilt for not chasing it down but maybe perhaps that would have been

Millias: Do something.

Conroy:

Corral the dog and understand the gravity of this situation and understand the potential for further risk that he was undertaking by keeping the dog.  

Roy: 

Do the neighbors feel strongly that they don’t want the dog … I don’t want to put you on the spot but is this part of the neighborhood chat is that people are nervous about this dog.

Conroy:

I know I personally can only speak for myself whenever I walk my dog past that area I am constantly on alert.

Roy: So, you’re not at peace?

Wilson: Well have you seen a dog out there by himself since it happened.  

Conroy: Since our incident I have on occasion seen your dog in the yard.

Wilson: By himself?

Conroy: By himself.

Wilson: In the last two years?

Conroy:

In the last two years I can’t give you dates I can’t.  I can only speak from my observation and it’s not a regular thing I don’t want to say he’s being 100% neglectful but he’s not taking the pro-action that’s required of owning an aggressive dog.

Roy: Yes

Wilson:

I will admit that maybe not maybe I haven’t taken all the precautions necessary to keep this from happening and I’m sorry for that but I now I see how bad it is.  He’s never attacked a dog like that before.  He only ever scratched Mr. Conroy’s dog in the whole eight years he’s been alive.  I just …

Millias: That’s because she held him up over her head. 

Wilson:

I understand that but if she didn’t hold him up over her head who is here to say that it would have been different.  He could have just barked at him.  

Conroy: If if’s and buts were candy and nuts we’d all have a wonderful Christmas.
Wilson: Making comments like that nots really helping. 

Millias:

Well he did the dog did scratch the dog at least at the very least so some of the aggressiveness was there. 

Wilson:

I have been nothing but forthcoming with every piece of information about the dog.  I am willing to borrow the money to make sure everything is secure, and this never happens again.  I have said this countless times.  
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Give me an opportunity.  Have another hearing in two weeks or a month or a week and you’ll see me making progress.  I’ll get him enrolled into a class.  He does not come out of the house without a leash on right now.  Even after he was released from the quarantine.

Roy: Is it a leash that actually fits him?

Wilson: Yes, and he has a harness.

Roy: Is it the same leash that Mr. Kling observed with you?

Wilson: He was talking about a collar not a leash.

Roy: Okay

Animal Inspector Kling:

When I released him from quarantine it was the same collar and it’s still loose.

Roy: Still loose.

Wilson: So, he has a harness and he’s been on the harness.

Roy: Mr. Kling do you have an opinion?

Animal Inspector Kling: I’ll be very blunt I don’t think Mr. Wilson should have a dog.

Roy: Thank you.

Millias: Did Noreen have a did we ultimately get a recommendation? 

ACO Callahan:

No, you didn’t.  I really don’t know.  I have to acquiesce.  I’m fearful unless he makes drastic drastic tomorrow morning, he’s got to be there at … get his Halifax license and maintain it.  That would be absolutely number 1.  If he has to bungee cord and secured his … 

Millias: Gate
ACO Callahan:

Both fences that’s got to be his responsibility to keep that dog contained.  Every time he steps out of the house with a muzzle it has to have a muzzle an adult a able body adult walk that dog let him go to the bathroom and come right back in the house.  I mean …

Wilson: I can do all those things.

ACO Callahan: Unless that …  if any report of the dog escaping by accident because … 

Millias: Or for any reason

ACO Callahan:

For any reason I don’t care if a tornado blew through.  That fence line has to be checked on a regular basis.  Each and every … before he goes out.  I mean unless it is that drastic and the dog owner being conscious which he has not shown in the past two years unless he can make a drastic drastic change.  I don’t know I really … I have to acquiesce the Board as far as that goes because.  Unless it was like that for me I wouldn’t feel safer the citizens of Halifax to be even to walk their dog freely up and down the roads.  

Millias:

One of my concerns is how do we monitor that.  I’m not gonna drive by there every day to see if there’s a bungee cord on the fence.
Wilson:

Noreen can well not every day of her life but in the next couple of weeks she can monitor the progress.
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ACO Callahan:

And if he doesn’t say that he’s going to make some some things improvements and I don’t see improvements I don’t want to be confrontational with him 

Roy: Right

ACO Callahan:

I just want … maybe the Board can recommend a daily itinerary for him to I did this I did this I did this I did this.  And he should provide a written report weekly on what he’s accomplished.  If he can’t do that then …

Roy: Who had their hand up?

Millias: Destiny

Newell:

I would just like to ask you guys to take in consideration that Rufus is our family.  I get this happened but the side of him you … all he wants to do is lie around and get cuddles he’s been there with us through everything like I really need you guys to take into consideration that this is my baby. I love him so much (crying).

Roy:

I’m sure you do and it’s very hard for us to even have that conversation because we do understand that we feel terrible for the dog too.  We do and I want you to know that so whatever decision that we make you need to know that we understand that and we would feel pretty bad about that but you also need to understand that out charge is to keep the residents and the dogs of the Town of Halifax safe.  And so, this is not a personal thing this is our charge.  So, with that I will entertain a motion.  Oh, do you have one more thing to say?

J. Botelho:

I was gonna say that during my walks I also observed the dog really inside the house bolting towards the side window that’s in their apartment showing barking and … 

Wilson: Dogs are allowed to bark.

J. Botelho: Yup I mean he shows his vitality if I may use that term.

Roy: Okay

Wilson: I might add something. 

Roy: Sure Mr. Wilson.

Wilson:

If two people have two children and they get in a really bad fight one of the children gets injured cut, scraped, bruised.  Does that child other child get put down because he because they got into fight?

Roy: I don’t think that’s the right analogy when we’re talking about right now.

Wilson: These are our children am I wrong?

Roy:

If there is a child that injures their sibling to the point where there’s hospital then maybe there could be charges brought against them.         






Wilson: Charges but not death.  It’s … 

Roy:

Well this is the thing.  Obviously, it’s a totally different situation cause those are humans and we do you know treat things differently and so I … do you have anything more to say before I entertain a motion from the Board members.
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Wilson: No 

Roy: Okay thank you. 

Garron: I would move that the dog be euthanized.

Millias: Based on what I’m hearing I’d have to second that at least for a vote.

Roy: Okay.  All those in favor. 

Roy: Aye

Garron: Aye

Millias: Aye

Roy: I’m very sorry for this decision we had to make.

Moved by Garron and second by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to have the dog euthanized and recommended that a letter be hand delivered to the dog owner.  

Marge Smith – Appointment to the COA
Ms. Smith stated that she moved to Halifax in 1984 and is now retired.  She has joined the Joy of Writing Group and is amazed at the services the COA has to offer and what they do.  Now that she has the time she wants to give back.  With the talk of nursing homes closing she feels that the services of the COA will be needed more and wants to help in that endeavor.  The board was thrilled that she wanted to take this on.  
Moved by Garron and second by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to appoint Marge Smith to the Council on Aging Committee, term to expire June 30, 2021.

Bob Grant – River Street Solar Farm 
Mr. Grant came in this evening to give the BOs an update on the solar farm they currently are churning up earth work and starting to install equipment and hopefully will start next week trenching for underground utilities and conduit installation.  They have applied for their building permit and are talking with the building inspector about the fee for the structure.  They have also met with the Assessors to discuss or at least engage in the process of assessing a PILOT and they have a follow-up meeting scheduled for next week.  He thinks at that point they will have some good information about the process; what they anticipate the cost to be; have a proposal of how we intend to make the town’s people comfortable and how we would handle it. he also said they have applied for the permit the building inspector has thirty days to issue it. 

Seelig said that we have not gotten much feedback from the residents about the field but they are worried about twenty years from now so that is going to be an extremely important point for the town because these folks don’t want their successors cursing them out.  
Millias said there is also the dynamics of the Town Meeting and this could be a stumbling block for ratification of a PILOT agreement.  

Garron asked if they wanted to make a decision tonight or do you want to wait and Millias recommended that they wait for the Assessors to negotiate everything and get their recommendation.  
Garron asked when would the thirty days be up for the building inspector to make his decision and Grant said the 28th or 29th
Seelig said the Board’s next meeting is April 23rd so if necessary, they can bring this back at that meeting.  
Millias said if necessary, the Board of Assessors can have another meeting on this too.  He is confident that they can come to some decent resolution.  
Roy thanked him and he in turn Grant thanked the Board.  
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Pole Hearing – 107 River Street – Simon Yeoung – National Grid Representative
At 8:45 p.m., the Board convened a public hearing for the purpose of considering the joint petition submitted by Verizon New England, Inc. and Massachusetts Electric Company to place two new poles (P64 & P64-84) at 107 River Street.  Abutters were notified via regular mail at least seven days prior to the hearing.

Present for the hearing was Simon Yeung, engineer from National Grid, to answer any questions the Board or abutters had.  No abutters made their presence known to the Board.  Yeung explained that the existing pole work needs to be replaced on River Street and two new poles will be installed to provide service to a new solar farm.  Garron asked if service will be interrupted and Yeung said the closest one is 11 Pratt Street and he does not think so.  Garron and Millias did not see an issue with this. 
Moved by Millias and seconded by Garron, the Board unanimously voted to approve placing Pole P64 & P64-84 at 107 River Street.
Pole Hearing – 8 Hilda Lane – Simon Yeoung – National Grid Representative
At 9:00 p.m., the Board convened a public hearing for the purpose of considering the joint petition submitted by Verizon New England, Inc. and Massachusetts Electric Company to place two new poles (P4-32 & P4-33) at 8 Hilda Lane.  Abutters were notified via regular mail at least seven days prior to the hearing.
Present for the hearing was Simon Yeung, engineer from National Grid, Joe Webby of Webby Engineering Associates, Bryan Webby of 4 Hilda Lane and Paul Jackson of 6 Hilda Lane.
Yeung said that there will be new construction at this location at this time they just have temporary service and they are thinking of going underground.  They are requesting service for a new residential customer and the last pole is about two-three hundred feet away so they will need at least one pole and then going underground to the new house so we need another one on the other side, therefore  going to put two in at once.
Millias said that he has some issues with that because of the proposed subdivision plan from about seven years ago and he thinks we ended up with two lots there that are basically going to be landlocked without frontage on the street and what he is saying is that they may be putting in poles where something might not happen.  He does not know this for a fact but just wanted to bring that up. 

Roy asked if anyone is the audience had any comments and Joseph Webby spoke up. 
J. Webby said that his son Bryan lives at 4 Hilda Lane and Paul Jackson from AFK Realty trust, has asked to review the application from National Grid & Verizon New England to install these two new utility poles on Hilda Lane.  He said in 2006 when the subdivision was developed part of the subdivision process was the utilities are supposed to be underground.  After talking to the secretary of the Planning Board a waiver has not been asked for yet for relief from the Planning Board regulation.  We are not sure what the purpose of these poles are for yet – obviously they’re for electricity, but we want to see what the big picture is.  If they are  going to put in power and upgrade Hilda Lane they would like to see them pave the road but if not then they want the subdivision to be built according to the plan, and the covenant that was approved by the Planning Board,
Roy asked if he was requesting the Board of Selectmen to take no action at this time on the approval of the poles and J. Webby said that they are asking for guidance from the BOS.

Millias said to what J. webby said he is thinking to take no action and follow up on this as he does not think any plan has been presented for any new construction – single family development or anything.  He would like to get some feedback from the developer, because we can certainly reach out to the owner and ask what their intention is here.  
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Garron asked Yeung if he had any idea what the intention is, and he said he thinks in the future this subdivision actually develops into a bigger kind of residential area.  They can install these poles ahead of time and then later they can basically run a single-phase cable to the end of the last pole and then it would go underground from the last pole.  
Millias said that there are two issues here: power is one and what’s going on is another as he does not know if there was any revocation of the subdivision and stated again they should find out. 
Garron stated that they will continue this hearing until such time they hear from the Planning Board and suggested April 23rd.  Roy pointed out that they already have nine appointments scheduled for that night.  Seelig said the next Selectmen’s meeting would then be the 28th of May (besides Town Meeting) but suggested if the Board preferrs having a daytime or evening meeting they could.  Roy opted for daytime and suggested ten o’clock on May 7th.   The Board decided to continue the hearing to Tuesday, May 7th at 10 a.m.
McSherry asked what if the abutters can’t make it during the day because they are working and Millias’ thought as that most of the interested abutters are here now.  Seelig said the other abutters can call the office to find out if a decision was made or if we are continuing it and if they have comments they can send them.  If they want to be there but cannot make the morning meeting the Board does not have to make a decision that morning and can continue the hearing to an evening meeting.  

MEETING ADJOURNED

There being no further business, moved by Garron and seconded by Millias, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn the meeting at 9:15 p.m.

-------------------------------------------------

Gordon C. Andrews
Clerk
/pjm
